
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A  

July 20, 2021 

5:00 PM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 

2nd Floor Board Room 
 

 

Pledge and Invocation 
  

Agenda Approval 
  

Minutes 
1. July 6, 2021 BOC Meeting 

  

Unfinished Business 
2. Morgan County Planning & Development is requesting a text amendment to Article 7 of the 

Morgan County Zoning Ordinance related to recreational vehicles. 

  

New Business 
3. FY22 Aging Services Contract with NEGRC 

4. Acceptance of a portion on Westminster Way and all of Lancaster Lane in to the County road 

network 

5. Purchase of Patrol Rifles 

6. Purchase of SCBAs 

7. Purchase of Extrication Tools 

8. New Contract for Printers/Copiers 

9. Commissioner Liaison Reports 

10. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

- 1 -



July 06, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, 

MET THIS DAY IN REGULAR SESSION.   

 
MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Philipp von Hanstein, Vice-Chair Ben Riden, Jr., Commissioners Bill 

Kurtz, Donald Harris and Andy A. Ainslie, Jr. 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, Procurement Director Mark Williams, County 

Attorney Christian Henry, and County Clerk Leslie Brandt.       

 

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and 

Invocation. 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL 
  

Motion by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve agenda with 

the following addition:  Executive Session-Litigation.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

SCHEDULE PUBLIC COMMENT-SHARON HUFF 

Sharon Huff came before the Board to discuss issues at the intersection of Highway 83 and 

Sandy Creek Road in reference to vehicle accidents. 

 

MINUTES 
June 15, 2021 BOC Meeting 

June 22, 2021 BOC Special Called Meeting 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Kurtz to approve the minutes 

as presented.  Unanimously Approved. 

   

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to accept as information the June 2021 payables to include General Fund in the amount 

of $852,479.44, TSPLOST in the amount of $333,779.10, SPLOST in the amount of 

$3,290,590.32, General Fund electronic payments in the amount of $324,643.83 and the June 

2021 financials. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the consent 

agenda as presented. Unanimously Approved. 

 

FENCING FOR NEWBORN ROAD COMPACTOR SITE 

The proposed fencing will separate the open top dumpsters for bulk waste, metal, and yard debris 

from the household garbage compactor. 

 

Bids Received 

Precision Fencing $16,812.05 

D&D Fencing $14,785.00 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Kurtz to purchase fencing and 

installation from D&D Fence for $14,785 and to transfer $14,785 from Capital Projects Fund 

Reserve to Solid Waste. Unanimously Approved. 

 

PURCHASE OF WHEEL LOADER FOR SOLID WASTE 

The current wheel loader at Solid Waste is beyond repair.  The current loader will be surplused 

and sold.  United Rentals located a 2014 Case model 621F with 2,813 hours.  The loader was 

inspected and determined to be in very good mechanical condition.  United Rentals quoted 

$77,000 for the wheel loader and an additional $12,000 to replace the tires with new foam filled 

tires.  The total cost is $89,000 and is a budgeted item for FY22. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the purchase 

of the Case wheel loader with foam filled tires for $89,000 from United Rental. Unanimously 

Approved. 

- 2 -



July 06, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

 

MAULDIN & JENKINS ENGAGEMENT LETTER FOR FY22 AUDIT 

The Board approved a 3-year contract with Mauldin & Jenkins, which goes through FY2022.  

The amount approved on the original contract for FY2022 was $37,000.  Because of funds from 

Cares Act and the American Rescue Plan Act, we are now required to have a single audit which 

cost an additional $5,000.  The total amount of the engagement is now $42,000. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the FY2022 

engagement letter for auditing services with Mauldin & Jenkins for $42,000. Unanimously 

Approved. 

 

PURCHASE AEDs FOR SHERIFF'S OFFICE VEHICLES 

The Sheriff’s Office is requesting 31 AEDs to be placed in each vehicle.  Having the units in 

each vehicle will increase the potential to provide immediate aid until more skilled responders 

and an ambulance arrive on scene.  A quote was obtained from Boundtree Medical for $37,200.  

The County can purchase from National EMS contract for reduced pricing.  This is a budgeted 

item for FY2022. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner Ainslie to approve the purchase 

of 31 AEDs from Boundtree Medical for $37,200. Unanimously Approved. 

 

CVB BOARD VACANCY 

The term of Laura Rotroff expired June 30, 2021.  One application was received from Carol 

Sanchez to be considered for appointment. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to appoint Carol 

Sanchez to the CVB Board with term ending June 30, 2024. Unanimously Approved. 

 

DEVELOPMENT AUTH. BOARD VACANCY 

There is an unexpired vacant term on the Development Authority Board.  One application was 

received from Robert Bell to be considered for appointment. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Kurtz to appoint Robert Bell 

to the Development Authority Board with term ending December 31, 2022. Unanimously 

Approved. 

 

QUITCLAIM DEED-PORTION OF OLD U.S. HWY. 441 

The Board abandoned a portion of Old U.S. Hwy. 441 at the April 6, 2021 Board meeting.  This 

item is for two quitclaim deeds for the two property owners that live along the abandoned portion 

of Old U.S. Hwy. 441 (Plainview Development, Inc., and Pamela Wolsky Stratton). 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Kurtz to approve two 

quitclaim deeds to deed a portion of Old U.S. Hwy. 441 that was officially abandoned April 6, 

2021 to Plainview Development, Inc. and Pamela Wolsky Stratton as presented. Unanimously 

Approved. 

 

QUITCLAIM DEED-PORTION OF CUMMING DR. (CR67) 

The Board abandoned a portion of Cumming Drive (CR67) at the April 6, 2021 Board meeting.  

This quitclaim deed is to deed the abandoned portion to property owner (Barbara Williams 

Sauerbier) that lives along the abandoned portion.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, Seconded by Commissioner Riden to approve the 

quitclaim deed to deed a portion of Cumming Drive (CR67) that was officially abandoned April 

6, 2021 to Barbara Williams Sauerbier as presented. Unanimously Approved. 

 

COUNTY MANAGER REPORT 

County Manager, Adam Mestres, presented a monthly overview of Morgan County government's 

current projects and/or issues. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

No public comments were made. 

 

- 3 -



July 06, 2021 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO ADD CHAPTER 7.43 RECREATIONAL VEHICLES TO THE 

MORGAN COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE. 

This item was tabled at the June 1, 2021 BOC meeting.  The text amendment is being requested 

to address recreational vehicles on private property.  The Board reviewed the updated changes 

with Jarrell.  

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed proponents to speak: 

Gary Savage, Buckhead resident spoke in favor of the amendment.  He also suggested creating 

an online registration for landowners and renters. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed opponents to speak: 

No one spoke in opposition. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, seconded by Commissioner Harris to table the text 

amendment regarding recreational vehicles.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

MORGAN COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT IS REQUESTING A TEXT 

AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 7.36 OF THE MORGAN COUNTY ZONING 

ORDINANCE RELATED TO WELLNESS RETREATS. 

Discussion only. 

Planning Director, Chuck Jarrell presented a request for a text amendment to remove Chapter 

7.36 Wellness Retreats from the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance.  In 2014, Wellness Retreat 

was added to the Zoning Ordinance as part of an overhaul of personal care related uses.  In 

December 2014, Bobby Robinson was approved for Morgan County’s Wellness Retreat, but he 

never opened the Wellness Retreat and the approval expired. 

 

In the last 6 months, the Planning staff received 4 serious inquiries related to Wellness Retreats.  

Unfortunately, people have discovered that the definition of Wellness Retreat can be broadly 

construed and abused.  Planning staff is proposing that the use be removed entirely from the 

Ordinance and anyone who wants to operate a health-related retreat can seek a text amendment 

in the future to add language specific to their use. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed proponents to speak: 

No one spoke in favor. 

 

Chairman von Hanstein allowed opponents to speak: 

No one spoke in opposition. 

 

No motion was made.  This was a discussion item only. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit regular session at 

11:35 a.m.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION- LITIGATION 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to enter Executive 

Session to discuss litigation at 11:35 a.m. Unanimously Approved.  (Original signed Affidavit in 

Executive Session Legal Requirement Book). 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ainslie, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit Executive 

Session and adjourn 11:57 a.m.  Unanimously Approved. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Philipp von Hanstein, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

- 4 -



Proposed Recommendations for Chapter 7.43 - Individual Recreational Vehicles 

1. Request approval to add Chapter 7.43 as submitted as recommended by staff and the Planning 
Commission. (Exhibit 2) 

2. Request approval to delete Section 7.18.15 of the existing language. (Exhibit 1) 
3. Deny the request to add Chapter 7.43 to the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance. (Exhibit 2) 
4. Deny the request to delete Section 7.18.15. (Exhibit 1) 
5. Request approval of some or all modifications identified in red to Chapter 7.43, as listed below. 

These modifications are based on public and Commissioner comments. (Exhibit 3) 
6. Based on Commissioner comments a few revisions were made. All new comments are in blue. 
7. Discussion - If registration fees will be charged, a fee schedule will need to be determined. A 

minimum fee of $50.00 is recommended.  

 
Existing Language Currently in the Zoning Ordinance (Exhibit 1) 
 
Section 7.18.15  Recreational Vehicles on Private Lots 
Individual recreational vehicles occupied temporarily by a guest of the owner or tenant of the property 
on which the recreational vehicle is located, shall be allowed, not to exceed 15 consecutive calendar 
days in any 60 day period. No recreational vehicle shall be used as a permanent residence on any private 
lot. 
 

Proposed Language Recommended by the Planning Commission (Exhibit 2) 

Chapter 7.43   Individual Recreational Vehicles 

Section 7.43.1  Purpose and Intent 

The purpose of this Chapter to detail Morgan County’s individual recreation vehicle regulations, which 
are separate from regulations described in this Ordinance for Recreational Vehicle Parks. It is Morgan 
County’s policy that individual recreational vehicles shall not be considered equivalent to, not be 
permitted as, permanent residential structures.  

Section 7.43.2  Prohibitions 

Individual recreation vehicles are not permitted as permanent residences in any zoning district. No 
recreational vehicle may be connected to a well, septic tank or to an electrical power pole, temporary or 
otherwise. Waste from recreational vehicles may not be buried or disposed of on the ground. Except for 
the purpose and time frame provided for in Section 7.43.4, no electrical cords or generators may be 
used to provide power to any recreational vehicle, nor may any water line be connected. In addition to 
the presence of water, septic or electrical connections, the following factors may constitute acts to be 
considered indicative of residential use:  1. Evidence of persons entering or exiting the vehicle; 2. 
Illumination of the vehicle; 3. Accessory structures about the vehicle; 4. Window masking; 5. Expanded 
bays “popped out.” 

 

 

- 5 -



Section 7.43.3  Storage of Recreational Vehicles 

No recreational vehicle may be stored on property that does not contain a residence. No more than one 
recreational vehicle may be stored on property in any zoning district, unless approved as a Recreational 
Vehicle Park or Campground. Recreational vehicles shall not be parked in the front yard. 

Section 7.43.4  Recreational Vehicles as Temporary Guest Housing 

Recreational vehicles may be used as temporary guest housing in zoning districts where single family 
dwellings are permitted. Recreational vehicles that are owned by non-Morgan County residents, guests 
or visitors and are registered and tagged from outside the county may be parked or occupied by guests 
or visitors on property on which a permanent occupied dwelling is located for a total cumulative period 
not to exceed 30 days per calendar year while visiting the resident of such property. This cumulative 
total period may include visits by a single guest or multiple guests over the period, but no more than 
one recreational vehicle at a time. Such recreational vehicles may not be parked on a street, sidewalk or 
right-of-way. 

 

 

Revised Language based on Comments from Public and Commissioners (Exhibit 3) 

Chapter 7.43   Individual Recreational Vehicles 

Section 7.43.1   Purpose and Intent 

The purpose of this Chapter is to detail Morgan County’s Individual Recreational Vehicle regulations, 
which are separate from regulations described in this Ordinance for Recreational Vehicle Parks. It is 
Morgan County’s policy that Individual Recreational Vehicles shall not be considered equivalent to, not 
nor be permitted as, nor be occupied as, a permanent residential structure.  

 

Section 7.43.2   Prohibitions 

No Recreational Vehicle may shall be stored on property that does not contain a principal residence. 

Individual Recreation Vehicles shall not be permitted or occupied as a permanent residence in any 
zoning district.  

No Recreational Vehicle may shall be connected to a well, public water source, septic tank, sewer 
system or to an electrical power pole. temporary or otherwise. Exception:  

1. When a Recreation Vehicle is in a legally approved Recreational Vehicle Park or Campground, or 
otherwise approved in Section 7.43.4; or  

2. When a Recreational Vehicle is part of an established hunting camp that has these amenities 
pre-existing to the adoption of this ordinance. 

Sanitary waste or grey water from Recreational Vehicles shall not be discharged, buried, or otherwise 
disposed of on the ground.  

- 6 -



No Recreational Vehicle that is wrecked, dismantled, inoperative, dilapidated, or unregistered shall be 
parked or stored in any zoning district. Any Recreational Vehicle meeting these criteria, shall be deemed 
a public nuisance. 

Except for the purpose and time frame provided for in Section 7.43.4, no electrical cords or generators 
may be used to provide power to any Recreational Vehicle, nor may any water line be connected. In 
addition to the presence of water, septic or electrical connections, the following factors may constitute 
acts to be considered indicative of residential use:   

1. Evidence of persons entering or exiting the vehicle  
2. Illumination of the vehicle 
3. Accessory structures about the vehicle 
4. Window masking 
5. Expanded bays “popped out” Slide-outs extended 
 

Section 7.43.3   Storage of Recreational Vehicles 

No Recreational Vehicle may shall be stored on property that does not contain a residence.  

Legally stored Recreational Vehicles shall not be used for living, sleeping or housekeeping purposes, 
nor shall they be used as storage sheds. 

No more than one Recreational Vehicle may be stored on property in any zoning district, unless 
approved as a Recreational Vehicle Park or Campground.  

Recreational Vehicles must be currently registered and tagged, having the official, current license 
plate mounted in the appropriate location on the vehicle. 

Recreational Vehicles shall be parked in the side or rear yard of the principal residence. No Recreational 
Vehicles shall be parked between the principal residence and the street. in the front yard Recreational 
Vehicles may be parked inside an enclosed accessory building located in the front yard, if permitted. 

No Recreational Vehicles shall be parked or stored within any designated setback for the district. 

 

Section 7.43.4   Recreational Vehicles as Temporary Guest Housing 

Section 7.43.4.1 – Traveling Guest Accommodations  

Recreational Vehicles may be used as temporary guest housing in zoning districts where single family 
dwellings are permitted. Recreational Vehicles that are owned by non-Morgan County residents, guests 
or visitors and are registered and tagged from outside the county may be parked or occupied by guests 
or visitors on property on which a permanent occupied dwelling is located for a total cumulative period 
not to exceed 30 days per calendar year while visiting the resident of such property. This cumulative 
total period may include visits by a single guest or multiple guests over the period, but no more than 
one recreational vehicle at a time.  

- 7 -



If guests are staying for more than nine (9) consecutive days at any one time, the property owner must 
obtain a Recreational Vehicle Temporary Guest permit. The property owner must obtain a 
Recreational Vehicle Temporary Guest permit, which shall not be valid for more than thirty (30) days 
in a calendar year. 

Recreational Vehicles shall not be parked on a street, sidewalk, right-of-way or within a required 
setback.  

Recreational Vehicles must be currently registered and tagged, having the official, current license 
plate mounted in the appropriate location on the vehicle. The Recreational Vehicle must be 
maintained in good aesthetic appearance and function and be kept road worthy and maintained in 
good condition. Waste disposal shall be limited only to the Recreational Vehicle’s holding tank or to 
an above ground holding tank that is regularly pumped by a waste disposal company. A Recreational 
Vehicle shall not be connected directly to a septic tank or sewer connection. 

 

Section 7.43.4.2 – Special Circumstance Accommodations 

A Recreational Vehicle may be approved as temporary housing for a limited time up to three (3) six (6) 
months under special circumstances. Those special circumstances include temporary accommodation 
during the reconstruction of the principal residence on the subject property after a natural disaster, 
such as a tornado, or due to fire or water damage, or for temporary medical care of a family member.  

Applicant must obtain a Recreational Vehicle Temporary Housing permit, which shall not be valid for 
more than three (3) six (6) months. To renew this permit, the applicant must receive approval from 
the Morgan County Board of Commissioners for not more than one (1) additional six (6) month 
period.  

The Recreational Vehicle Temporary Housing permit application must be accompanied by the 
following: 

• “Letter of Need”, explaining the circumstances requiring the need for temporary housing. 
• Fire damage: Copy of fire report with pictures. 
• Tornado and water damage: Copy of insurance report with pictures. 
• Medical care: Letter from the medical care provider, identifying the level of home care and 

approximate time.   

The application and supporting documentation will be evaluated to determine if administrative 
approval may be granted for using a Recreational Vehicle as temporary housing. 

Recreational Vehicles must be currently registered and tagged, having the official, current license 
plate mounted in the appropriate location on the vehicle. The Recreational Vehicle must be 
maintained in good aesthetic appearance and function and be kept road worthy. The Recreational 
Vehicle must be road worthy and maintained in good condition. Waste disposal shall be limited only 
to the Recreational Vehicle’s holding tank or to an above ground holding tank that is regularly 
pumped by a waste disposal company. A Recreational Vehicle shall not be connected directly to a 

- 8 -



septic tank or sewer connection. No structures such as porches, storage space, additional rooms, 
permanent stairs, or the like, may be attached to the recreational vehicle. 

 

Section 7.43.4.3 – Hunting Lease Accommodations 

A Recreational Vehicle may be approved as temporary housing for seasonal hunting accommodations. 
Applicants shall obtain a yearly Seasonal Hunting Accommodation permit to occupy a Recreational 
Vehicle on any leased property in Morgan County during hunting season. The Recreational Vehicle 
shall not be occupied no more than nine (9) consecutive days at any one time during the hunting 
season.  

The Seasonal Hunting Accommodation permit application must be accompanied by the following: 

• Copy of Hunting Lease with property owner. 
• Map of leased property indicating location of Recreational Vehicle.  

Recreational Vehicles must be currently registered and tagged, having the official, current license 
plate mounted in the appropriate location on the vehicle. The Recreational Vehicle must be 
maintained in good aesthetic appearance and function and be kept roadworthy. The Recreational 
Vehicle must be road worthy and maintained in good condition. Waste disposal shall be limited only 
to the Recreational Vehicle’s holding tank; to an above ground holding tank or portable toilet that is 
regularly pumped by a waste disposal company. A Recreational Vehicle shall not be connected directly 
to a septic tank or sewer connection unless connections are pre-existing. No permanent or temporary 
electrical poles shall be allowed unless the electrical poles are pre-existing. No structures such as 
porches, storage space, additional rooms, permanent stairs, or the like, may be attached to the 
recreational vehicle. 

Recreational Vehicles must be removed from leased property at end of said hunting season. 

 

Section 7.43.5   Recreational Vehicle Registration 

When required by this Chapter, individuals will be required to file an application with supporting 
documentation to obtain a permit.  Applications can be obtained from Morgan County Planning and 
Development to register Recreational Vehicle.  A copy of the registration certificate must be attached to 
a window, visible from the exterior of the Recreational Vehicle. A registration fee may be required as 
approved, from time to time, by the Morgan County Board of Commissioners. 

 

Section 7.43.6   Penalties 

Failure to follow the requirements of this Chapter may result in the revocation of the use permit, denial 
of future use permits, or citations per day that the violation exists. Penalties for Violation is further 
described in Chapter 2.17 of this Ordinance. 

- 9 -



- 10 -



- 11 -



- 12 -



- 13 -



- 14 -



- 15 -



- 16 -



- 17 -



- 18 -



- 19 -



- 20 -



- 21 -



- 22 -



- 23 -



- 24 -



- 25 -



- 26 -



- 27 -



- 28 -



- 29 -



- 30 -



- 31 -



- 32 -



- 33 -



- 34 -



- 35 -



- 36 -



- 37 -



- 38 -



- 39 -



- 40 -



- 41 -



- 42 -



- 43 -



- 44 -



- 45 -



- 46 -



- 47 -



- 48 -



- 49 -



- 50 -



- 51 -



- 52 -



- 53 -



- 54 -



- 55 -



- 56 -



- 57 -



- 58 -



- 59 -



- 60 -



- 61 -



- 62 -



- 63 -



- 64 -



- 65 -



- 66 -



- 67 -



- 68 -



- 69 -



- 70 -



- 71 -



- 72 -



- 73 -



- 74 -



- 75 -



- 76 -



- 77 -


	Top
	Item1.	July 6, 2021 BOC Meeting
	7-6-2021 BOC Minutes - DRAFT-complete

	Item2.	7.43 Recreational Vehicles
	Proposed Recommendations for 7.43

	Item3.	FY22 Aging Services Contract with NEGRC
	FY22 Aging Services NEGRC Contract

	Item4.	Acceptance of Road in Buckhead Manor
	ROW Deed_Phase 7_part executed

	Item5.	Purchase of Patrol Rifles
	Agenda Request - Patrol Rifles

	Item6.	Purchase of SCBAs
	Agenda Request - SCBA

	Item7.	Purchase of Extrication Tools
	Agenda Request - Extrication Tools

	Item8.	New Contract for Printers/Copiers
	Agenda Request - Printer Contract

	Item9.	Commissioner Liaison Reports
	Item10.	Public Comments on Agenda Items
	Bottom

